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Independent Accountant’s Review Report 
 
To the Honorable Mayor Roxie Fornea 
 and Board of Aldermen 
Village of Angie, Louisiana 
 
We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Angie, as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.  A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and 
making inquiries of management.  A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression 
of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Accountant’s Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and 
Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA, and the standards applicable 
to review engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the United States Comptroller General.  Those 
standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any 
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis 
for our conclusion.  
 
Accountant’s Conclusion 
 
Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying financial 
statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 9-15 and page 43 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting and for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  The information is the responsibility of management. 
We have reviewed the information and, based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be 
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made to the information in order for it to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. We have not audited the information and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion on such information. 
 
Supplementary Information  
 

The accompanying Justice System Funding Schedule listed as Other Supplementary Information in the table of contents is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The information is 
the representation of management.  We have reviewed the information and, based on our review, we are not aware of any 
material modifications that should be made to the information in order for it to be in accordance with the reporting framework 
prescribed by Louisiana Revised Statute 24:515.2 and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor.  We have not audited the 
supplementary information and accordingly, do not express an opinion on such information. 

The supplementary information contained in the remaining schedules listed as Other Supplementary Information in the table 
of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  This 
information is the representation of management.  We have reviewed such supplementary information and, based on our 
review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the information in order for it to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  We have not audited the supplementary 
information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion on such information. 

 
 

 
Bruce Harrell & Company, CPAs 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Kentwood, Louisiana 
January 14, 2022 
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VILLAGE OF ANGIE 
Angie, Louisiana 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
Introduction 

 
The Village of Angie is pleased to present its Annual Financial Report developed in compliance with 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - 
Management‘s Discussion and Analysis – For State and Local Governments (hereinafter referred to as 
GASB 34) and related standards. 
 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to: 
 
1.  assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, 
 
2.  provide an overview of the Village’s financial activities, 
 
3.  identify changes in the Village’s overall financial position and results of operations and  
     assist the user in determining whether the financial position has improved or  
     deteriorated as a result of the year’s operations, 
 
4.  identify any significant variations from the original, amended, and final budget amounts and  

include any currently known reasons for those variations that are expected to have a                     
significant effect on future services or liquidity, and 

 
5.  identify individual fund issues or concerns. 
 
The information contained within this MD&A should be considered only as part of a whole.  The reader 
of this statement should take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report, including the footnotes 
and other Required Supplemental Information (RSI) that are provided in addition to this MD&A. 
 
Overview of Annual Financial Report 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the basic financial 
statements. The Village’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-Wide financial statements  
 
The government–wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
Village’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. These financial statements are 
reported using the full accrual accounting methods. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Village is improving or 
deteriorating. 
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VILLAGE OF ANGIE 
Angie, Louisiana 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
 
The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the Village as a 
whole.  These statements distinguish between those activities of the Village that are governmental and 
those that are considered business type activities. 
 
Fund financial statements   A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that has been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village segregates 
transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial 
management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by 
the governmental funds. 
 
Notes to financial statements   The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosure, 
essential to the understanding of the financial statements. The notes present information, about the 
Village’s accounting policies, significant account balances, and activities, commitments, contingencies, 
and subsequent events, if any.  Supplementary information includes a comparative budget schedule. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 Total assets, at December 31, 2020 were $641,615 and exceeded liabilities by the amount of 

$574,307  (i.e., net position).  Of the total net position, $202,197 was unrestricted and available 
to support short-term operations, $22,151  restricted for the cemetery, and the balance of 
$349,959 was invested in capital assets. 
 

 Revenues consist of ad valorem tax, sales taxes, grant funds, refund on landfill operation, and 
fines and other fees, along with revenue from water sales (business-type). The total revenues for 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 were $275,486, representing an approximate decrease 
of 51% from total revenues for fiscal year ended December 31, 2019 of $561,803. This is mainly 
due to grant funds received in the amount of $296,451 in the prior year.  General government’s 
revenues decreased by $296,502 (59%). The revenues from the enterprise fund increased 
$10,185 (16%).   
 

 The Village’s operating expenditures for the governmental funds, consisting of those 
expenditures resulting from the Village’s ongoing operations, were $201,262 reflecting a 
decrease of $422,330 from 2019 expenditures of $623,592.  In 2019, the Village incurred 
$421,855 in street overlay costs.  The operating expenses for the proprietary fund were $68,013 
compared to 2019 expenses of $56,688.  
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VILLAGE OF ANGIE 
Angie, Louisiana 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
Financial Analysis   

 
Statement of Net Position 
 
Included below is a condensed Statement of Net position for the Village.  The condensed format allows 
the reader to view the overall financial position of the Village.  An explanation of the components of this 
statement is included immediately following the table. 
 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 
   

   
             
See page 17 for a more detailed Statement of Net Position for the Village. 
 
The composition of net position and the change in net position over time serves as a useful indicator of 
a government’s financial position.  Net position from governmental activities decreased $2,678 in fiscal 
year 2020 and net position from business-type activities increased $3,441.  
 
The largest category of net position is “Investment in Capital Assets” totaling $349,959 or 61% of net 
position. This category reflects the total invested in capital assets (land, buildings, equipment, and 
infrastructure, etc.) net of any related debt used to acquire capital assets (none in 2020 or 2019).  These 
capital assets are used to provide services to citizens and do not represent assets available for future 
spending.   
 
The second largest category of net position is “Unrestricted Net Position”, totaling $202,197 or 35% of 
net position.  These assets are available to meet the ongoing needs of the Village. 
 
The final category “Restricted Net Position”, totaling $22,151 is restricted for the cemetery upkeep. 

 
  

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assets:
   Current and Other Assets 197,506$  180,657$    106,141$  94,210$     303,647$    274,867$    
   Capital Assets 211,376    206,822      138,583    142,792     349,959      349,614      
Total Assets 408,882    387,479      244,724    237,002     653,606      624,481      

Liabilities:
   Other Liabilities 71,612      47,531        7,687        3,406         79,299        50,937        
Total Liabilities 71,612      47,531        7,687        3,406         79,299        50,937        

Net Position:
   Investment in Capital Assets 211,376    206,822      138,583    142,792     349,959      349,614      
   Restricted 22,151      24,779        -            -            22,151        24,779        
   Unrestricted 103,743    108,347      98,454      90,804       202,197      199,151      
Total Net Position 337,270$  339,948$    237,037$  233,596$   574,307$    573,544$    

TotalBusiness - Type ActivitiesGovernmental Activities
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VILLAGE OF ANGIE 
Angie, Louisiana 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

Condensed Statement of Activities  
 

 
 
While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position, the Statement 
of Activities provides answers to the nature and scope of these changes.  The above table gives an 
indication of how the mayor and board of aldermen operate the Village of Angie on a conservative basis.    
 
The governmental net position for the fiscal year 2020 decreased $2,678 or 1%, while business-type net 
position increased by $3,442 or 1%.  
 
Total revenues decreased by $286,317 or 51%.  This is mainly due to grant funds of $296,451 received 
in 2019.  Sales taxes are the major source of general government revenue totaling $110,111 for the year 
2020, representing 40% of total revenue.  The second largest governmental revenue source is traffic 
fines of $21,502 or 8% of total revenues.  Total revenues from the business type funds increased by 
$10,185 or 16%.  A grant in the amount of $12,350 was received in the water fund. 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues:
  Program Revenues:
    Charges for service 21,502$      30,740$        59,862$      55,708$       81,364$        86,448$        
    Capital Grants and Contributions -             -               12,350        -              12,350          -               
  General Revenues:

    Property Taxes 6,960         5,008            -             -              6,960           5,008            

    Sales Taxes 110,111      102,105        -             -              110,111        102,105        

    Occupational Licenses 27,007        28,178          -             -              27,007          28,178          

    Landfill Refund 5,200         7,400            -             -              5,200           7,400            

    Franchise Taxes 14,067        14,957          -             -              14,067          14,957          

    Intergovernmental -             296,451        -             -              -               296,451        
    Interest 1,295         2,584            302            400             1,597           2,984            
    Donations 10,675        519               -             -              10,675          519               
    Other 1,576         5,453            79              6,300          1,655           11,753          
    On-behalf payments 4,500         6,000            -             -              4,500           6,000            
Total Revenues 202,893      499,395        72,593        62,408        275,486        561,803        

Expenses:
  General Government 145,638      272,690        -             -              145,638        272,690        
  Public Safety 61,071        67,814          -             -              61,071          67,814          
    Public Works -             290,000        -             -              -               290,000        
  Water Utilities & Sanitation -             -               68,013        56,688        68,013          56,688          
Total Expenses 206,709      630,504        68,013        56,688        274,722        687,192        

Changes in Net Position
 before Transfers and Contributions (3,816)        (131,109)       4,580          5,720          764              (125,389)       
Transfer In/(Out) 1,138         17,200          (1,138)         (17,200)       -               -               
Change in Net Position (2,678)        (113,909)       3,442          (11,480)       764              (125,389)       

Beginning Net Position 339,948      453,857        233,596      245,076       573,544        698,933        
Ending Net Position 337,270$    339,948$       237,038$    233,596$     574,308$      573,544$       

Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities Total
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Total expenses decreased in 2020 by $412,470 which is a 60% decrease over 2019.   The main reason 
for this is the costs of street overlay in the amount of $421,855 in the prior year. The major expenses 
within the statement of activities are for salaries of $98,904, repairs and maintenance of $29,071, 
insurance of $20,058, and professional fees at $27,050.  
 
Analysis of Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental Funds  
 
The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, 
and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the Village’s financing 
requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Village’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the year. 
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Village’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance 
of $125,894, a decrease ($7,234) over the fund balance at December 31, 2019.  The unassigned fund 
balance is ($35,222).  It is a deficit due to the amount in “Due to other funds”.  The remainder of the fund 
balance is assigned to indicate that its expenditures are dictated by the provisions of the sales tax 
ordinance (streets, sewage, & water works) in the amount of $133,050 or assigned for the cemetery 
located within the Village in the amount of $22,151.  The amount that is nonspendable due to costs 
related to prepaid insurance is $5,915. 
 
 
 
Budgetary Highlight  
 
The Village has a formal policy on adopting a budget.  The Village prepares the budget on the accrual 
basis of accounting. The Village adopted its 2020 budget at the regular meeting of December 2019 and 
amended the budget in December 2020.  The mayor and board of aldermen review the budget/actual 
financial figures on a monthly basis.    All appropriations lapse at year-end. 
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VILLAGE OF ANGIE 
Angie, Louisiana 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
Following is a comparison of the final budget to actual expenditures for the year ended December 31, 
2020: 
 
Budget vs. Actual – Fiscal Year End December 31, 2020 
 
 

 
 
General Fund and Sales Tax Fund revenues and other sources were in compliance with the Local 
Government Budget Act.  Sales Tax Fund expenditures and other uses were in compliance with the Act. 
General Fund expenditures and other uses were over budget by more than 5%.  The Village was not in 
compliance with the Act. 
 
 
Capital Assets   
 
At the end of the fiscal year December 31, 2020, the Village of Angie had $349,959 of capital assets (net 
of accumulated depreciation), including land.  Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the 
General Fund and as assets in the government–wide financial statements.  Depreciation is recorded on 
general fixed assets on a government-wide basis using the straight-line method and the following 
estimated useful lives: 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 

Favorable
Original Final (Unfavorable)
Budget Budget Actual Variance

Revenues & Other Sources
General Fund 178,940$   156,863$  166,122$     9,259$            
Sales Tax Fund 51,100       56,100      56,256         156                 

Expenditures & Other Uses
General Fund 160,730     169,538    191,215       (21,677)           
Sales Tax Fund 67,000       43,145      38,397         4,748              

Description

Buildings & Improvements 20 - 40 Years

Machinery and Equipment 5 - 10 Years

Infrastructure 20 - 40 Years

Water System 10 - 20 Years

Other Depreciable Property 20 - 40 Years

Estimated Lives
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VILLAGE OF ANGIE 
Angie, Louisiana 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost was not available.   
Donated assets are valued at fair market value on the date donated. The cost of all assets acquired prior 
to 1989, have been valued using estimated historical cost.  
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020: 
 

 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Village did not have any long-term debt. 
 
 
Future Economic Plans 
 
The Village of Angie’s board of aldermen actively monitors revenues and expenses. They are constantly 
seeking state and/or federal grants to fund improvements to the Village.  Their sources of revenue are 
limited and any increase in the revenue sources is highly unlikely.  Therefore, the board’s focus is on 
obtaining new grants, streamlining expenditures, and ensuring all revenue is timely collected.  The 
board’s plan is always to improve services for the voters of the Village of Angie, without increasing the 
tax burden. 
 
Contacting the Village’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the Village's citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with 
a general overview of the Village's finances and show the Village's accountability for the money it 
receives. Questions regarding this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to 
the Village of Angie at 64475 Cherry Street Angie, LA 70426 and (985) 986-2444.

December 31, December 31, Dollar Percentage
Governmental Activities Capital Assets 2019 2020 Change Change
  Land 20,500$         30,500$      10,000$         48.78%
  Building And Improvements 181,048         182,443      1,395             0.77%
  Other Depreciable Property 17,000           17,000        -                 0.00%
  Machinery And Equipment 169,595         169,595      -                 0.00%
Total General Fund Capital Assets 388,143         399,538      11,395           2.94%
      Less Accumulated Depreciation (181,319)       (188,162)     (6,843)            3.77%
 General Fund Capital Assets, Net 206,824$      211,376$    4,552$           2.20%

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets
  Equipment 23,644$         23,644$      -$               0.00%
  Water Utility System 393,341         405,691      12,350           3.14%
Total Enterprise Capital Assts 416,985         429,335      12,350           2.96%
      Less Accumulated Depreciation (274,193)       (290,752)     (16,559)          6.04%
Enterprise Capital Assets, Net 142,792$      138,583$    (4,209)$          -2.95%



 

16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

17 
 

 

STATEMENT A

Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS:
   Current Assets:
      Cash and Cash Equivalents 37,839$        36,487$            74,326$       
      Investments 100,577        25,000              125,577       
      Receivables, Net 26,612           2,061                 28,673         
      Due From Other Funds 4,412             42,593              47,005         
      Prepaid Insurance 5,915             -                     5,915           
        Total Current Assets 175,355        106,141            281,496       

  Restricted Assets:
     Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 22,151           -                     22,151         
  Total Restricted assets 22,151           -                     22,151         

   Capital Assets:
      Land 30,500           -                     30,500         
      Capital Assets, Net 180,876        138,583            319,459       
  Total Capital Assets 211,376        138,583            349,959       

        Total Assets 408,882$      244,724$          653,606$     

LIABILITIES:
   Accounts Payable 25,467           3,275                 28,742         
   Payroll Taxes Payable 3,552             -                     3,552           
   Due To Other Fund 42,593           4,412                 47,005         
  Total Current Liabilities 71,612           7,687                 79,299         

        Total Liabilities 71,612           7,687                 79,299         

NET POSITION:
   Invested In Capital Assets 211,376        138,583            349,959       
   Restricted For:
      Road Repairs -                 -                     -                    
      Cemetery 22,151           -                     22,151         
   Unrestricted 103,743        98,454              202,197       
        Total Net Position 337,270$      237,037$          574,307$     

Primary Government

VILLAGE OF ANGIE
Angie, Louisiana

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT B

Capital Net
Charges For Grants And (Expenses) Government Business-Type

Expenses Services Contributions Revenues Activities Activities Total
Government Activities
   General Government 145,638$     -$              -$               (145,638)$         (145,638)$       -$              (145,638)$    
   Cemetery -                -                -                 -                      -                   -                -                
   Public Safety 61,071          21,502          -                 (39,569)              (39,569)           -                (39,569)        
   Public Works -                -                -                 -                      -                   -                -                
   Total Government Activities 206,709$     21,502$        -$               (185,207)$         (185,207)$       -$              (185,207)$    

Business - Type Activities
  Water 51,070          40,705          12,350          1,985                 -                   1,985            1,985            
  Sanitation 16,943          19,157          -                 2,214                 -                   2,214            2,214            
  Total Business - Type Activities 68,013$        59,862$        12,350$        4,199$               -$                 4,199            4,199            

General Revenues:
   Ad valorem taxes 6,960               -                6,960            
   Sales taxes 110,111          -                110,111       
   Occupational licenses 27,007             -                27,007         
   Franchise taxes 14,067             -                14,067         
   Landfill refund 5,200               -                5,200            
   Donations 10,675             -                10,675         
   Interest 1,295               302               1,597            
   On-behalf supplemental pay for police 4,500               -                4,500            
   Other 1,573               79                  1,652            
Operating transfers in (out) 1,138               (1,138)           -                
           Total General Revenues and Transfers 182,526          (757)              181,769       

Change in net position (2,681)              3,442            761               

Net position, beginning 339,952          233,595        573,547       
Net position, ending 337,271$        237,037$     574,308$     

Program Revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

VILLAGE OF ANGIE
Angie, Louisiana

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Change of Primary Government
Net (Expenses)Revenues and
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STATEMENT C

Sales Total
General Tax Governmental

Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
   Cash and cash equivalents 2,639$        35,201$      37,840$         
   Investments -             100,577      100,577         
   Accounts receivable, net:
         Property taxes 4,467          -              4,467             
        Sales tax 5,416          5,416          10,832           
        Franchise taxes 4,173          -              4,173             
        Other receivable 840             -              840                
   Due from parish government 6,300          -              6,300             
   Prepaid insurance 5,915          -              5,915             
   Restricted Cash 22,151        -              22,151           
   Due from other funds -             27,237        27,237           
             Total Assets 51,901$      168,431$    220,332$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
   Account payable 24,865$      602$           25,467$         
   Payroll payable 3,552          -              3,552             
   Interfund Liabilities:
   Due to other funds 30,640        34,779        65,419           
          Total Liabilities 59,057        35,381        94,438           

Fund Balances:
   Nonspendable 5,915          -              5,915             
   Restricted 22,151        -              22,151           
   Assigned -             133,050      133,050         
   Unassigned (35,222)      -               (35,222)         
          Total Fund Balances (7,156)        133,050      125,894         
Total Liabilities & Fund Balances 51,901$      168,431$    220,332$       

Governmental Fund Types

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
As of December 31, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT D

  Total Fund Balances of Governmental Funds (Statement C) 125,894$       

  Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
  resources;  therefore, they are not reported in the governmental funds:
  Capital Assets-net of depreciation 211,376         
     Net Position of Governmental Activities (Statement A) 337,270$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Financial 

Statement of Net Position
As of December 31, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different 
because:
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STATEMENT E

Total
Sales Tax Governmental

General Fund Funds
Revenues
  Property taxes 6,960$          -$           6,960$           
  Sales tax 55,150          54,961       110,111        
  Occupational license 27,007          -             27,007           
  Fines 21,502          -             21,502           
  Franchise taxes 14,067          -             14,067           
  Landfill refund 5,200            -             5,200             
  Grants -                -             -                 
  Interest earned 1,295         1,295             
  Donations 675               -             675                
  On-behalf payments supplemental pay 4,500            -             4,500             
  Other 1,573            -             1,573             
     Total Revenues 136,634       56,256       192,890        

Expenditures
  General government 120,144       18,652       138,796        
  Public safety 61,071          -             61,071           
  Public works -                -             -                 
  Capital outlay -                1,395         1,395             
     Total expenditures 181,215       20,047       201,262        

-                 
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (44,581)        36,209       (8,372)            

Other financing sources (uses)
  Operating transfer-in 19,488          -             19,488           
  Operating transfer-out -                (18,350)     (18,350)         
Total other financing sources (uses) 19,488          (18,350)     1,138             

Net change in fund balances (25,093)        17,859       (7,234)            

Fund balances at beginning of the year 17,937          115,191    133,128        
Fund balances at end of year (7,156)$        133,050$  125,894$      

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT F

    Net Change in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds (Statement E) (7,234)$         

    Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the Statement
    of Activities the cost of these assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
    reported as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
    depreciation in the current period:
         Capital outlay 11,395       
         Depreciation  Expense (6,843)        4,552             

      Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Statement B) (2,682)$         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different 
because:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental 

Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020



 

24 
 

 

STATEMENT G

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Proprietary Fund
As of December 31, 2020

Enterprise
Fund

ASSETS
   Current Assets:
      Cash and cash equivalents 36,487$      
      Investments 25,000         
      Accounts receivable, net:
        Utilities 2,061           
      Prepaid expenses -               
      Due from other funds 42,593         
             Total Current Assets 106,141      

   Property, Plant, and Equipment
      Land -               
      Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net 138,583      
             Total Property, Plant, and Equipment 138,583      

             Total  Assets 244,724      

Liabilities:
   Current Liabilities:
      Accounts Payable 3,275           
      Payroll Taxes Payable -                    
      Due to other funds 4,412           
          Total Liabilities 7,687           

Net Position
   Investment in capital assets 138,583      
   Unrestricted 98,454         
          Total Net Position 237,037$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT H

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Enterprise
Fund

Operating revenues
Charges and fees
   Water Sales 40,705$    
   Sanitation Billings 19,157      
Other Revenues 79              
Total operating revenues 59,941      

Operating expenses
Sanitation 16,943      
Wages 8,249         
Payroll tax 631            
Bad Debt 3,574         
Fees 2,072         
Dues and Subscriptions 300            
Repairs and maintenance 3,705         
Supplies 10,018      
Training 80              
Utilities 5,882         
Depreciation 16,559      
   Total operating expenses 68,013      

Operating income (loss) (8,072)       

Nonoperating  revenue
Grant revenues 12,350      
Interest revenues 302            

Total nonoperating revenues 12,652      

Income Before Transfers 4,580         

Transfer In (Out) (1,138)       

Change in net position 3,442         

Total net position beginning of year  233,595    

Total net position at end of year 237,037$  

Proprietary Fund

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT I

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund

For Year Ended December 31, 2020
Enterprise

Cash Flows From Operating Activities Fund
Cash received from customers 62,140$     
Received from interfund servicves 6,581          
Miscellaneous 79               
Payments for employees (8,880)        
Payments for operation (42,506)      

Net cash provided by operating activities 17,414       

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from (to) other funds (1,138)        

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (1,138)        

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital  Grants  Received 12,350       
Payments for capital acquisitions (12,350)      
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities -              

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Receipts of interest 302             

Net cash provided by investing activities 302             

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 16,578       
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19,909       

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36,487$     

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the 
 Statement of Net Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Unrestricted 36,487$     
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted -              

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 36,487$     

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) (8,072)$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
   net cash provided by operating activities
  Depreciation expense 16,559       

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 2,278          
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds 2,168          
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 200             
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (131)            
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 4,412          
     Total adjustments 25,486       

Net cash provided by operating activities 17,414$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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VILLAGE OF ANGIE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 

         
Introduction 
 
The Village of Angie, Louisiana, was incorporated on March 28, 1906, under the provisions of the 
Lawrason Act. The Village operates under a Mayor-Board of Alderman form of government. The 
governing body of the Village of Angie is elected by the registered voters living in the village. Elected 
officials include the mayor, three aldermen, and a police chief. These positions are compensated. All 
funds of the village shall be administered by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. Angie is located 
approximately two miles south of the Mississippi state line. The Village is approximately 51 acres in size 
and services a population of approximately 249. The Village employs one part-time office clerk, two part-
time maintenance workers, and four part-time police officers. The Village operates a water and sanitation 
department that serves approximately 128 customers. 
 
1.   Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Village of Angie is considered a 
separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, 
the Village, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c) other 
organizations for which nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 establishes criteria for 
determining the reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity.  
Under provisions of this statement, the Village of Angie is considered a primary government, since it is 
a special purpose government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is 
fiscally independent of other state and local governments.  As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally 
independent means that the Village may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, 
determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt.  
There are no other component units which the Village of Angie has an oversight relationship. 

 
B.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

These financial statements are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, for State and Local Governments.  Statement No. 
34 established standards for financial reporting, with presentation requirements originally including a 
statement of net assets (or balance sheet), a statement of activities, and a statement of cash flows.  The 
definition and composition of these statements, as originally defined in GASB Statement No. 34, are as 
amended by GASB Statements included in the following paragraphs.  The Village has also adopted the 
provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Transactions, that require capital contributions to the Village to be presented as a change in net position. 
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GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position, effective for financial statement periods ending after December 15, 2012, 
provides guidance for reporting deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net 
position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures.  Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements 
of Financial Statements, introduced and defined Deferred Outflows of Resources as a consumption of 
net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources as an acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting 
period, respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those 
financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. GASB Concepts Statement 4 
identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position. 
This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and other 
pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into 
the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as 
net position, rather than net assets.   

 
The Village has also adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities.  This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as 
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously 
reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain 
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the governmental activities of the Village of Angie.  The effect of 
inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally 
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment, are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those expenses that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  The focus 
of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on “Major” funds.   Funds statements 
present in separate columns the General Fund, followed by Major Funds, with Non-Major Funds 
aggregated and displayed in a separate column. The proprietary fund is reported separately. 
 

 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 



 

30 
See Independent Accountant’s Review Report. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures, related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.  
 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period.  Only the portion of special assessment receivable, if any, due within the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.  All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 
 
The Village of Angie reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of sales tax revenues that is legally restricted 
to expenditures for specified purposes. 
 

The Village of Angie reports the following major proprietary fund: 
 

The Enterprise Fund accounts for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprise where the intent of the governing body is that costs (expenses, 
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be 
financed or recovered primarily through user fees, or (b) where the governing body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for 
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

  
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board.  Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance 
for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.  The Village has 
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 
 
As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements.  Exceptions to this general rule, if applicable, are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other 
charges between the Village’s enterprise operations.  Elimination of these charges would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.  
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of 
the proprietary funds are user charges for the services provided by the enterprise funds.  Operating 
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
D.  Deposits and Investments  
 
The Village’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.  State law and the Village’s investment 
policy allow the Village to invest in collateralized certificates of deposit, government backed securities, 
commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and mutual funds consisting solely of 
government backed securities.   
 
Investments for the Village are reported at fair value, except nonparticipating investment contracts which 
are reported at cost.  The state investment pool, LAMP, operates in accordance with state laws and 
regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value. 
 
E.  Receivables and Payables  
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to” or “due from” other funds (i.e., the current portion of 
inter-fund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans).  All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”.  Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in 
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. 
 
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance 
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation 
and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. 
 
Property taxes are levied on January 1 and become due on December 1, of each year.  They become 
delinquent after December 31, and in June of each year the Village has a tax sale of property on which 
taxes have not been paid. For the year ended December 31, 2020, taxes of 5.58 mills were levied and 
authorized for general governmental purposes, on property with taxable assessed valuations totaling 
$1,268,810.  This tax does not expire per the Louisiana Constitution.  Levied taxes totaled $7,080 for the 
year ended December 31, 2020. 
 
F.  Inventories and Prepaid Items  
 
Purchase of various operating supplies are considered expenditures at the time purchased and 
inventories of such supplies (if any) are not recorded as assets at the close of the fiscal year.  Certain 
payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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G.  Restricted Assets  
 
Certain proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited to specified expenditures. 
 
H.  Capital Assets  
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items,) are reported, in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost, 
or estimated cost if historical cost is not available.  Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their 
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  The municipality maintains a threshold level of $500 
or more for capitalizing capital assets.   
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of 
the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 
 
All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated in the government-wide financial statements using 
the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
 

 
 
I.  Compensated Absences 

 
The Village only employs part-time employees and does not have a formal leave policy. 
 
J.  Sales Taxes 
 
Proceeds of the 1% sales and use tax levied by the Village are dedicated to constructing and improving 
public roads, streets, bridges and crossings, and the extension and maintenance of sewerage and water 
works and other works of permanent public improvement in the Village of Angie.   The proceeds are 
allocated equally between the general and sales tax funds.  The tax has no expiration date. 
 
 
K.  Long-Term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets.  Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 

Description

Buildings & Improvements 20 - 40 Years

Machinery and Equipment 5 - 10 Years

Infrastructure 20 - 40 Years

Water System 10 - 20 Years

Other Depreciable Property 20 - 40 Years

Estimated Lives
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effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of the debt issued is reported 
as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
L.  Net Position and Fund Balance  
 
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following categories: 
 

 Net Investment in capital assets – The net investment in capital assets component of net 
position consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or indebtedness 
attributable to acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are 
significant unspent proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to unspent 
proceeds is not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets. Rather, that portion 
of the debt is included in the same net asset calculation as unspent proceeds.  The Village 
does not have any capital related debt, and as such, this component is, “Investment in 
Capital Assets” in the current year. 

 
 Restricted – The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced   

by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.  Generally, a liability 
relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the 
recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported. 

 
 Unrestricted – The unrestricted component of net position is the net amounts of the assets, 

deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not 
included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component 
of net position. 

 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The Village 
adopted GASB 54 for the year ended December 31, 2014.  Governmental funds are classified as follows: 

 
 Nonspendable -These are amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in 

nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact.  

  
 Restricted -These are amounts that can be spent only for specific purpose because of 

constitutional provisions, enabling legislation, or externally imposed constraints by creditors, 
grantor, contributors or the laws or regulations of other governments. 

 
 Committed -These are amounts that can be used for specific purpose determined by a formal 

decision by the Board Members, which are the highest level of decision-making authority for 
the Village.  
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 Assigned -These are amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed, but that are intended to be used for specific purpose.  

 
 Unassigned -These are all other spendable amounts.  
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available for use, the Village 
considers amounts to have been spent first out of restricted funds, then committed funds, then assigned 
funds, and finally unassigned funds as needed, unless it has been provided for otherwise in the 
restriction, commitment, or assignment action. 
 
M.  Extraordinary and Special Items  
 
Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in 
occurrence.  Special items are transactions or events within the control of the Village, which are either 
unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. 
 
N.  Estimates 
  
The preparation of financial statements in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, and expenses during the reported 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

O.  Reconciliations of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements  
 
Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net position is presented in Statement D of the basic financial statements.  Explanation 
of certain differences between the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances and the government-wide Statement of Activities is presented in Statement 
F of the basic financial statements. 
 
 
2.  Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 
The Village of Angie uses the following budget practices. 
 
a)  The proposed budget for December 31, 2020, prepared on modified accrual basis of accounting, 
was adopted at the Village’s December 2019 meeting.    
 
b)  All expenditure appropriations lapse at year end. 
 
c)  Unexpended appropriations and any excess of revenues over expenditures are carried forward to 
the subsequent year as beginning fund balances.   
 
d)  The budget was amended at the Village’s special meeting held in December 2020. 
 
General fund expenditures were over the 5% threshold required by the Local Government Budget Act. 
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents (book balances) at December 31, 2020:   

 
                                          
These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned 
by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance 
must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name 
of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. 
 
Custodial credit risk as it related to cash deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
government’s deposits may not be returned.  At December 31, 2020, the municipality has $197,363 in 
deposits (collected bank balances), consisting of $102,321 in demand deposits and $95,042 in 
certificates of deposits. These deposits are secured from risk by $250,000 of federal deposit insurance 
(GASB Category 3). 
 
4. Investments 
 
Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk: 
 
1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the municipality or its agent in the Village’s name 

 
2. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in 

the Village’s name 
 
3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or 

agent but not in the Village’s name. 
 
At December 31, 2020, the Village’s investment balances consisted of $95,042 of certificates of deposit 
held at Citizen Savings Bank and $30,535 in deposits in LAMP. 
 
 
The Village’s investments are carried at fair value, except nonparticipating investment contracts, which 
are reported at cost. 
 
Interest Rate Risk: The Village does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means 
of managing its exposure to fair value arising from increasing interest rates. 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents

    Demand Deposit 96,477$        

Investments

    Time Deposits 95,042          

    Louisiana Assets Management Pool 30,535          

Total Investments 125,577        

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 222,054$      
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Interest and investment earnings are recorded only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered 
both measurable and available.   
 
The investment in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), an external investment pool, is stated 
at the value of the pool shares, which is the same as the fair value.  LAMP is administered by LAMP, 
Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local government 
entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets.  
 
While LAMP is not required to be a registered investment company under the Investment Company Act 
of 1940, its investment policies are similar to those established by Rule 2a7, which governs registered 
money market funds. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement 
of public funds in short-term, high-quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and 
other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with 
LSA-RS 33:2955. 
 
GASB 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of credit risk, Custodial credit 
risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all public entity 
investments. 
 
LAMP is a 2a7 – like investment pool. The following facts are relevant for 2a7 like investment pools: 

 Credit risk:  LAMP is rate AAAm by Standard and Poor’s 
 Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants’ investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of the 

pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity’s investment 
is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required. 

 Concentration of credit risk:  Pooled investments are excluded from the five percent disclosure 
requirements. 

 Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give participants immediate access to 
their account balances.  LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted 
average maturity (WAM) method.  The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 
days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for US 
Government floating/variable rate investments.  The WAM for LAMP’s total investments is 47 
days (from LAMP’s monthly Portfolio Holding) as of December 31, 2020. 

 Foreign currency risk: Not applicable to 2a7-like pools. 
 
The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value.  The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by 
LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset value of 
the pool shares. 
 
LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors.  LAMP 
is not registered with the SEC as an investment company.  If you have any questions, please feel free 
to contact LAMP administrative offices at 800-249-5267. 
 
 
5.  Receivables 
 
Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.  Allowances for 
uncollectible accounts are based on historical trends and the period aging and write-off of accounts 
receivable.  Major receivables balances for the governmental activities include sales taxes and ad 
valorem taxes.  Business-type activities report utilities earnings unpaid at December 31, 2020. 
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The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 2020: 
 
 

 
 
6. Inter-fund Receivables and Payables  
The following is a detailed list of inter-fund balances reported in the fund financial statements:  
 
 

 
 
The reasons for the interfund receivables/payables balances are payment of certain expenditures 
for other funds and deposits into one fund pertaining to other funds.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Sales Tax Enterprise
Class of Receivables Fund Fund Fund Total
Ad valorem taxes 4,467$          -$            -$          4,467$      
Due from Parish Government 6,300            -              -            6,300        
Sales Tax 5,416            5,416          -            10,832      
Franchise Tax 4,173            -              -            4,173        
Other Receivables 840               -              -            840           
Utility Receivables -                -              2,061        2,061        
   Total Receivables 21,196$        5,416$        2,061$      28,673$    

Interfund Balances

Due From 
Other 
Funds

Due To 
Other 
Funds

General Fund
Sales Tax Fund $                  -  $ 22,825 
Enterprise Fund                  -          7,815 

Total General Fund                  -        30,640 
Special Revenue Fund

Sales Tax Fund
General Fund        22,825                  - 
Enterprise Fund          4,412 34,779 

Total Sales Tax Fund        27,237 34,779 
Total Special Revenue Fund        27,237 34,779 
Enterprise Fund

General Fund          7,815                  - 
Sales Tax Fund        34,779          4,412 

Total Enterprise Fund        42,594          4,412 
Total Interfund Balances $      124,305  $      170,029 
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7. Accounts Payables and Other Accrued Liabilities 
 
The governmental funds payables at December 31, 2020 are as follows: 
 

 
 

The enterprise fund payables at December 31, 2020 are as follows: 

 
 
8. Capital Assets 
 
The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for governmental activities for the year ended 
December 31, 2020: 

 

Special Total
Governmental Funds General Revenue Governmental
Payable Fund Funds Funds

Accounts 24,865$  602$       25,467$     
Payroll Taxes 3,552      -          3,552         
Total 28,417$  602$       29,019$     

Total
Enterprise Fund Enterprise

Payable Water Sanitation Fund
-             

Accounts 460$       2,815$    3,275$       
Other -          -          -             
Total -$        2,815$    3,275$       

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Capital Assets Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
  Land 20,500$         10,000$      -$               30,500$         
  Construction in Progress -                 -               -                 -                 
Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 20,500           10,000        -                 30,500           
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
  Building and Improvements 181,048         1,395          -                 182,443         
  Other Depreciable Property 17,000           -               -                 17,000           
  Machinery And Equipment 169,595         -               -                 169,595         
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 367,643         1,395          -                 369,038         
Less Accumulated Depreciation
  Building (19,129)          (4,422)         -                    (23,551)          
  Other Depreciable Property (1,771)            (850)            -                    (2,621)            
  Machinery And Equipment (160,419)       (1,571)         -                 (161,990)       
      Total Accumulated Depreciation (181,319)       (6,843)         -                 (188,162)       
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 186,324         (5,448)         -                 180,876         
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net 206,824$      4,552$        -$               211,376$      
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On June 5, 2020, four lots (numbered 191, 192, 205, and 206) within the Village were donated to the 
Village.  The estimated value of the contribution is $10,000.  The Village also purchased a portable 
building for $1,395. 
 
Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows: 
 

 
The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for business activities for the year ended 
December 31, 2020: 
 
 

 
 
 
Depreciation expense for the enterprise fund was $16,559.  The Village bore a water line for $12,350.  
The water line bore was paid with a grant for $12,350.  The Village did not sell or dispose of any capital 
assets for the year ended December 31, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Government 6,843$     
Public Safety -           
Total 6,843$     

Beginning Ending
Business-Type  Activities Capital Assets Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
  Equipment 23,644$         -$            -$               23,644$         
  Water Utility System 393,341         12,350        -                 405,691         
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 416,985         12,350        -                 429,335         
Less Accumulated Depreciation
  Equipment (18,737)          (1,400)         -                 (20,137)          
  Water Utility System (255,456)       (15,159)       -                 (270,615)       
Total Accumulated Depreciation (274,193)       (16,559)       (290,752)       
 Capital Assets, net 142,792$      (4,209)$       -$               138,583$      
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9.  Interfund Transfers 
 
Interfund transfers were as follows for the year ended December 31, 2020: 
 

 
The reason for the interfund transfers was to provide for budgeted expenditures of the General Fund 
and expenses of the Enterprise Fund. 
 
10. Grants 
 
The Village received $12,350 in Community Water Enrichment Fund (CWEF) proceeds.  The funds were 
used to reimburse for the loop of the water system by boring under the state highway and railroad.  The 
project was completed in 2020.    
 
 
11.  Leases 
 
The Village had no capital or operating leases during the year ended December 31, 2020. 
 
 
 
12.  Litigation and Claims  
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Village was not involved in any outstanding litigations or claims.  
 
 
 
13.  Related Party Transactions 
 
There were no related party transactions requiring disclosure in the financial statements. 
 
 

General Sales Tax Enterprise

Fund Fund Fund Total

Transfer In

General Fund -$           -$           -$           -$           

Sales Tax Fund 6,000     -            12,350    18,350    

Enterprise Fund 13,488    -            -            13,488    

TOTAL 19,488$  -$           12,350$  31,838$  

Transfer Out

General Fund -$           (6,000)$   (13,488)$ (19,488)$ 

Sales Tax Fund -            -            -            

Enterprise Fund -            (12,350)   -            (12,350)   

TOTAL -$           (18,350)$ (13,488)$ (31,838)$ 
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14.  On-behalf Payments by the State of Louisiana 
 
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, the State of Louisiana made on behalf payments in the 
form of supplemental pay to the Village’s policemen. In accordance with GASB 24, the Village recorded 
$4,500 of on behalf payments as revenue and as an expenditure in the General Fund. 
 
 
15.  Fund Balance and Net Position 
 
At December 31, 2020, the General Fund had a nonspendable fund balance of $5,915, representing 
the prepaid insurance value at year end.  The General Fund had restricted fund balance and 
Governmental Activities had restricted net position of $22,151, representing amounts restricted by 
contributions for cemetery expenditures.  The deficit unassigned fund balance of ($35,222) is primarily 
due to the amount “Due to other funds” and represents excess expenditures incurred over the amounts 
that are restricted, committed, or assigned. 
 
At December 31, 2020, the Sales Tax Fund had an assigned fund balance of $133,050, representing 
amounts assigned in accordance with the local sales tax ordinances. 
 
 
16.  COVID 19 
 
In December 2019, COVID-19 emerged and has subsequently spread worldwide. The World Health 
Organization has declared COVID-19 a pandemic, and this pandemic has resulted in federal, state, and 
local governments and private entities mandating various restrictions, including travel restrictions, 
restrictions on public gatherings, stay at home orders, and quarantining of people that may have been 
exposed to the virus. 
 
COVID-19 and actions taken to mitigate it have and are expected to continue to have adverse effects on 
the economy. As the COVID-19 pandemic is complex and rapidly evolving, we cannot reasonably 
estimate the duration or severity of this pandemic nor its full impact on the entity, its financial position, 
change in financial position, or cash flows. 
 
 
17.  Subsequent Events 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through January 14, 2022, the date the 
financial statements were available for issuance.  There were no events requiring recording or 
disclosure in the financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

42 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
(Part II) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

43 
 

 
   

Schedule 1

Original Amended Original Amended
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Revenues
  Property taxes 600$                    6,400$             6,960$                 560$           -$         -$            -$          -$        
  Sales tax 50,000                 50,000             55,150                 5,150          50,000     55,000        54,961      (39)          
  Occupational licenses 34,000                 27,000             27,007                 7                 -           -              -            -          
  Fines 27,000                 18,550             21,502                 2,952          -           -              -            -          
  Franchise taxes 13,000                 14,500             14,067                 (433)            -           -              -            -          
  Landfill refund 7,400                   6,300               5,200                   (1,100)         -           -              -            -          
  Grant revenue -                       12,350             -                      (12,350)       -           -              -            -          
  Donations 675                      675             -           -              -            -          
  On-behalf payments supplemental pay 4,500                   4,500          -           -              -            -          
  Interest earned -                       -                   -                      -              1,100       1,100          1,295        195          
  Other 1,840                   2,075               1,573                   (502)            -           -              -            -          
     Total Revenues 133,840               137,175           136,634               (541)            51,100     56,100        56,256      156          

EXPENDITURES:
  General government 95,530                 112,445           120,144               (7,699)         -           23,400        18,652      4,748       
  Public safety 62,500                 55,293             61,071                 (5,778)         27,000     -              -            -          
  Capital outlays -                       -                   -                      -              20,000     1,395          1,395        -          
     Total expenditures 158,030               167,738           181,215               (13,477)       47,000     24,795        20,047      4,748       

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures (24,190)                (30,563)            (44,581)               (14,018)       4,100       31,305        36,209      4,904       

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in 45,000                 19,488             19,488                 -              -           -            -          
Transfer out -                       -                   -                      -              (20,000)    (18,350)       (18,350)     -          
Total other financing sources (uses) 45,000                 19,488             19,488                 -              (20,000)    (18,350)       (18,350)     -          
Net change in fund balances 20,810                 (11,075)            (25,093)               (14,018)       (15,900)    12,955        17,859      4,904       
Fund balances at beginning of  year (32,440)                (6,365)              17,937                 24,302        120,057   115,191      115,191    
Fund balances at end of year (11,630)$              (17,440)$          (7,156)$               10,284$      104,157$ 128,146$    133,050$  4,904$     

Sales Tax FundGeneral Fund

See independent accountant's review report.

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020



 

44 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Supplementary Information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

45 
 

 

Schedule 2

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Postition- Budget and Actual - Proprietary Fund
For Year Ended December 31, 2020

Original Amended
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance

Operating revenues
Charges and fees 52,000$   58,000$    59,862$     1,862$      
Other revenues -                 -                 79               79              
Total Operating revenues 52,000      58,000      59,941       1,941        

Operating expenses
Sanitation 19,000      18,000      16,943       1,057        
Wages -            -             8,249         (8,249)       
Payroll tax -            -             631            (631)          
Bad Debt -            1,500         3,574         (2,074)       
Fees 13,000      2,400         2,072         328            
Sales tax 400           -             -             -             
Dues and subscriptions -            300            300            -             
Repairs 7,000        5,500         156            5,344        
Maintenance 2,100        3,200         3,549         (349)          
Supplies 8,000        11,000      10,018       982            
Training -            120            80               40              
Utilities 6,000        5,800         5,882         (82)             
Other 5                -             -             -             
Depreciation 18,500      16,500      16,559       (59)             
   Total operating expenses 74,005      64,320      68,013       (3,693)       

Operating income (loss) (22,005)    (6,320)       (8,072)        (1,752)       

Non operating revenue (expenses)
Grant revenues -            -             12,350       12,350      
Interest earned 390           310            302            (8)               
 Total non operating revenues (expenses) 390           310            12,652       12,342      

Income (Loss) Before Transfers (21,615)    (6,010)       4,580         10,590      

Transfer In (Out) (25,000)    (1,138)       (1,138)        -             

Change in net position (46,615)    (7,148)       3,442         10,590      

Total net position at beginning of year 206,261   233,596    233,595     (1)               

Total net position at end of year 159,646$ 226,448$  237,037$  10,589$    

See independent accountant's review report.
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Schedule 3

Sales
General Tax

Fund Fund Total

Salaries-Mayor & Alderman 19,200$   -$           19,200$     
Salaries- Clerical 18,346      -             18,346       
Salaries-Other 6,243        -             6,243          
Payroll Tax 3,408        -             3,408          
Professional Service 27,050      -             27,050       
Legal 210           -             210             
Advertising 1,451        -             1,451          
Office Supplies 7,564        95              7,659          
Dues 1,006        1,006          
Insurance 20,058      -             20,058       
Postage 1,029        -             1,029          
Travel 1,128        -             1,128          
Repairs & Maintenance 1,667        8,784         10,451       
Telephone 7,268        -             7,268          
Utilities 920           7,773         8,693          
Other 3,596        2,000         5,596          
   General government 120,144   18,652      138,796     

Salaries- Police 46,866      -             46,866       
Payroll Tax 3,585        -             3,585          
Supplies 2,008        -             2,008          
Training 150           -             150             
Uniforms 30             -             30               
Repairs 7,047        -             7,047          
Patrol Car Expense 1,196        -             1,196          
Other 189           -             189             
   Public Safety 61,071      -             61,071       

Capital Outlay -            1,395         1,395          

Total Expenditures 181,215$ 20,047$    201,262$   

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

See independent accountant's review report.
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Schedule 4 
 

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA 
 

Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 
 

The schedule of compensation paid to board members is presented in compliance with House 
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature.  
 
The Board of Aldermen of the Village consists of three members elected by the registered voters of the 
Village. 
 
  
 

 
                       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See independent accountant’s review report. 

Name and Title / Contact Number Address Compensation

Gilbert Ball, Alderman P.O. Box 152 2,400$             
(985) 986-2444 Angie, LA 70426

Darryl Knight, Alderman 30308 Military Road 2,400               
(985) 986-2444 Angie, LA 70426

Roxie Fornea, Alderman 30082 East Street 2,400               
(985) 986-2444 Angie, LA 70426

Total 7,200$             



 

48 
 

Schedule 5 
 

VILLAGE OF ANGIE, LOUISIANA 
 

Schedule of Compensation, Reimbursements, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head 
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 
 

Agency Head Name: John Dawsey, Mayor 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See independent accountant’s review report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose Amount
Salary 12,000$      
FICA 918             
Travel 1,005          
Special Meals 103             

Total 14,026$      
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Schedule 6

Cash Basis Presentation

 First Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
06/30/2020 

 Second Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
12/31/2020 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected (i.e. cash on hand) -$                485$               

Add:  Collections

Criminal Fines - Other                9,183              12,319 

Subtotal Collections                9,183              12,319 

-                                      -   

Less:  Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency

Self Disbursed Village of Angie-Criminial Fines - Other                8,698              11,797 

Less:  Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies                      -                       -   

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 8,698               11,797            

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained (i.e. cash on hand) 485$                1,007$            

Ending Balance of "Partial Payments" Collected but not Disbursed -                  -                  

Other Information:

Ending Balance of Total Amounts Assessed but not yet Collected -                  -                  

Total Waivers During the Fiscal Period -                  -                  

Less:  Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: 

VILLAGE OF ANGIE

Justice System Funding Schedule - Collecting/Disbursing Entity

As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session
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Village of Angie 
Schedule 7 

Schedule of Current Year Findings and Responses 
 for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
Section I Financial Statement Findings 

 
Finding Number:  2020-C1 Local Government Budget Act (Noncompliance) 
 
Criteria: LRS 39:1305 requires a comprehensive budget be prepared for each fiscal year for the general fund and each special 
revenue fund by the chief executive or administrative officer or equivalent.  The budget document must include a budget 
message and a statement.  The budget must include a budget message signed by the budget preparer which should include a 
summary description of the proposed financial plan, policies, and objective, assumptions, budgetary basis, and a discussion of 
the most important features.  Total proposed expenditures must not exceed the estimated funds available for the budget year.  
LRS 39:1310 requires amending the budget when the governing authority has received written notification pursuant to R.S. 
39:1311 (when total revenue and other sources plus projected revenue and other sources for the remainder of the year, within 
a fund, are failing to meet total budgeted revenues and other sources by five percent or more; when total actual expenditures 
and other uses plus projected expenditures and other uses for the remainder of the year, within a fund, are exceeding the total 
budgeted expenditures and other uses by five percent or more; or when actual beginning fund balance, within a fund, fails to 
meet estimated beginning fund balance by five percent or more and fund balance is being used to fund current year 
expenditures), or there has been a change in operations upon which the original budget was adopted. In relation to budget 
amendments, it is noted that it is the opinion of the Legislative Auditor that, when viewing the requirements of the Local 
Government Budget Act as a whole and the role of budget amendments within the budgeting process of political subdivisions, 
a budget amendment is required whenever there is a 5% variance in revenue or expenditures, even in those circumstances 
when the proposed revenue and expenditures in the general fund or special revenue fund are under $500,000. Only the written 
notification requirements are exempted in cases of special revenue and general funds with anticipated expenditures of less than 
$500,000. 
 
Condition:  In December 2019, the Village adopted a budget for the year ending December 2020 for the General Fund, Sales 
Tax Fund, Cemetery Fund, and Utility Fund. The adopted budgets did not include a budget message.  Also, the Cemetery Fund 
is not reported as a separate fund, but is included in the General Fund.  Additionally, the General Fund total actual expenditures 
and other uses exceeded the total budgeted expenditures and other uses by five percent or more.  Finally, the final General 
Fund budget appears to include expenditures that exceed estimated funds available for the year. 
 
Cause: The Village prepared a comprehensive budget for the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund, but failed to include a 
budget message.  Also, the final 2020 adopted budget for the General Fund did not include the police vehicle repair.  Had the 
General Fund included the vehicle repair, the Village would have been in compliance with the budget act as it relates to actual 
expenditures being within 5% variance of the proposed expenditures.  Finally, the Village did not accurately update beginning 
fund balance in the budget of the general fund to show budgeted expenditures were not above funds available. 
 
Effect:  Apparent noncompliance with the above referenced statutes.  The Village failed to accurately update beginning fund 
balance in the final budget of General Fund to show budgeted expenditures were not above funds available.  Finally, the final 
budget for the General Fund included expenditures that exceeded the estimated funds available (expenditures exceeded 
budgeted revenues and other sources plus budgeted fund balance).  However actual beginning fund balance was higher and 
adequate to cover the budgeted expenditures in excess of budgeted revenues. 
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Recommendation:  The Village should prepare, submit and approve a comprehensive budget in accordance with the referenced 
statutes, including the budget message.  The Village should monitor the budget and also ensure that the budget is amended in 
accordance with the referenced statutes and line items are properly stated. A review of the final fund accounting to the final 
budget to ensure proper reporting should be done. 
 
Management’s Response: In the future, the Village will comply with all the requirements of the Local Budget Act. 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2020-C2 Traffic Citations (Noncompliance) 
 
Criteria: LRS 32:393C requires that full reports be kept of every case in which a person is charged with a traffic violation  and 
that an abstract of the report for all (paid and unpaid) traffic violations, except parking violations or those based solely on 
evidence from traffic camera, be sent to the Department of Safety and Corrections not later than 30 days (10 days electronically 
for individual holding commercial license or permit) after the date of the person’s conviction and sentencing or the final 
disposition of the case. Additionally, LRS 32:398.2 outlines the specifics for legal disposition of traffic citations. 
 
Condition: During the Village’s 2019 audit the following issues were identified and continued through 2020:  
 Instances of payment amounts lower than the fine amount per the docket without documentation of the reduction. 
 Records of issued citations have not been reported to the Department of Safety and Corrections. 

 
Cause:  The Village did not issue, process, or dispose of traffic citations and did not enforce procedures outlined in the above 
referenced statutes. The Village lacks written policies and procedures as discussed in Finding 2020-I4 and as such lacks a 
complete standardized process for adhering to the above referenced statutes. 
 
Effect:  Apparent noncompliance with the above referenced statutes.   
 
Recommendation: The Village's Chief of Police and Mayor should develop written procedures for traffic citations in 
accordance with state statutes and monitor compliance with these procedures. The Village should review resources on the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s website concerning Traffic Citations and contact the Louisiana Municipal Association for 
additional guidance. 
 
Management’s Response:  The Village’s officials met with legal counsel and reviewed the Louisiana Revised Statues and best 
practices for traffic tickets from the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and developed necessary policies and procedures to become 
compliant.  Resolved in 2021. 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2020-C3 Uncollected Ad Valorem Taxes (Noncompliance) 
 
Criteria:  Records of ad valorem taxes, collections and delinquencies are to be maintained and delinquent taxes followed up 
on through tax sale in accordance with LRS33:421, 434 and 47:2154. Additionally, Article VII, Section 14(A) of the Louisiana 
Constitution states that, “Except as otherwise provided by this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of 
the state or of any political subdivision shall not be loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, 
public or private…” 
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Condition: During the Village’s 2019 audit the following issues were identified and continued through 2020:  It appears that 
the Village is not properly tracking and following up on billing and collections. The Village lacks a complete standardized 
process for ad valorem tax collections. The Village adjusts ad valorem receivable to the total amount remaining uncollected 
for the current year.  However, the Village lacks adequate procedures and controls to identify past due amounts.  As such, the 
Village is unable to follow up on unpaid property taxes for collection or properly conduct a tax sale. 
 
Cause: The Village lacks written policies and procedures as noted within Finding 2020-I4 and lacks a complete standardized 
process for ad valorem tax collections. Additionally, the lack of properly designed and operating internal controls over ad 
valorem tax collections also resulted from a lack of segregation of duties due to the small entity size as discussed in Finding 
2020-I2.  Finally, it appears that the immateriality of many of the assessments and a lack of complete understanding of the ad 
valorem tax system have also caused the lack of follow up on collections. 
 
Effect:  Apparent noncompliance with the above referenced statutes and the above referenced section of the Louisiana 
Constitution. 
 
Recommendation: The Village should develop written policies and procedures for the tracking and collection of unpaid ad 
valorem taxes.   
 
Management’s Response: We contacted the Louisiana Municipal Association and approved proposals for the new ad valorem 
tax system.  Resolved in 2021. 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2020-I1 Inadequate Segregation of Duties (Significant Deficiency) 
 
Criteria: Proper segregation of incompatible duties requires that there be different individuals responsible for authorizing 
transactions, recording transactions and maintaining custody of related assets. 
 
Condition:  During the Village’s 2019 audit the following issues were identified and continued through 2020:  Village of Angie 
has only seven employees, all of which are part-time. Within those seven part-time employees, only one is considered an 
administration employee, the Village clerk. Consequently, most duties throughout the financial reporting process, which are 
considered incompatible, are being performed by the same individual. The Village engages an outside CPA to assist with 
monthly financial and budgetary reporting.   
 
Cause: Due to the size and nature of the Village, there are few administrative employees and as such, leads to inadequate 
segregation of duties.  
 
Effect:  Inadequate segregation of duties exposes the Village to several risks, including, but not limited to misappropriation of 
assets and inaccurate or fraudulent financial reporting as well as noncompliance with laws and regulations.   
 
Recommendation:  The Village should continue to explore ways to segregate incompatible duties possibly through the use of 
other personnel or staff, Board members, and use of the Village’s outside CPA, as appropriate.  
 
Management’s Response: While we have taken steps to mitigate the risks arising from incompatible duties, we will continue 
to explore additional avenues for segregating duties.  
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 



 

53 
 

 
 
Finding Number:  2020-I2 Credit Cards (Material Weakness) 
 
Criteria:  A properly designed and implemented internal control system provides, among other things, reasonable assurance 
that the financial data is accurate and complete and the entity’s assets are safeguarded.  When approving and processing 
payments of credit cards, supporting documentation should be attached (original receipt or invoice) with the statement. 
Documentation of each charge should include the business/public purpose.  
 
Condition: During the Village’s 2019 audit the following issues were identified and continued through 2020:  
The Village does not maintain receipts attached to the credit card statement. All expenditures are approved before purchased; 
however, the invoices/receipts/support are not matched to respective credit card statement and attached.   

 
Cause:  The Village lacks written policies and procedures as noted within Finding 2020-I4 and as such lacks a complete 
standardized process for credit card transactions. 
 
Effect:  Failure to design and operate effective internal controls over credit card transactions exposes the Village to several 
risks, including, but not limited to, misappropriation of assets and inaccurate or fraudulent financial reporting.  
 
Recommendation: The Village should put in place written policies and procedures related to credit cards and how they are 
allowed to be controlled, used, documented, approved, and monitored. The Village should also review resources on the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s website to include, but not be limited to best practices over credit cards. 
 
Management’s Response: The Village put into place written policies and procedures in 2021. These policies and procedures 
will address the credit cards and how they are to be controlled, used, documented, approved and monitored.  
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2020-I3 Utility Fund Accounts Receivable, Billing and Customer Deposits (Material Weakness) 
 
Criteria:  A properly designed and implemented internal control system provides, among other things, reasonable assurance 
that the financial data is accurate and complete and the entity’s assets are safeguarded. Effective operation of a utility billing 
system requires the design and operation of standardized procedures for input and reconciliation of transactions.  Specifics of 
such include, but are not limited to the following:  Accounts receivable balance in the general ledger should be reconciled 
monthly with the detailed accounts receivable customer listings from the utility billing system; and the utility customer deposit 
records in the billing system should be detailed and reflect the deposit the customer paid; records of payment should include 
the date paid, for what services, and the amount paid; and adjustments to utility billings should be proper, approved, and well 
documented.  
 
Condition: During the Village’s 2019 audit the following issues were identified and continued through 2020:  The accounts 
receivable balance in the general ledger is not reconciled monthly with the detailed accounts receivable from the utility billing 
system. Additionally, there is not a complete listing of customer deposits in the Village’s utility billing system. The Village 
does not have a complete and accurate customer liability report in its utility billing system. Finally, adjustments to customer 
billings or accounts are approved by the Mayor, but details of adjustments are often lacking.  

 
Cause: The Village lacks written policies and procedures as noted within Finding 2020-I4 and Lacks a complete standardized 
process for utility billings transactions. Additionally, the lack of properly designed and operating internal controls over some 
aspects of utility billings transactions also resulted from a lack of segregation of duties due to the small entity size as discussed 
in Finding 2020-I2.  Also, locating customer deposit information on a current utility customer requires looking up deposit 
information at the time the utility account was opened. And finally, it appears that an overall lack of complete understanding 
of the utility billings system has contributed to the condition noted above. 
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Effect: Failure to design and follow effective standardized procedures for operation of a utility billing system and failure to 
design and operate effective internal controls over the transactions related to the system exposes the Village to several risks, 
including, but not limited to, misappropriation of assets and inaccurate or fraudulent financial reporting.   
 
Recommendation: The Village should implement written policies and procedures and must continue to seek help in better 
understanding the utility billing system software. The Village should ensure that its employees obtain a full understanding of 
the transactions surrounding utility billing and collections. Finally, these specific recommendations are made: 

 All customer billing and account adjustments should be fully documented and approved and supporting 
documentation retained. Additionally, all customer billing and account adjustments must be entered into the 
utility billing system and an adjustments report should be run from the utility billing system for presentation 
to the Board and approval by the Board. 

 Customer deposit listing should be compiled from supporting documentation as soon as possible and entered 
into the billing software. Once listing is complete and entered into the billing software, the utility billing 
system should then be used to record and continuously monitor the customer deposit listing.  

 The Village should work with and provide its outside CPA the information and reports to help reconcile 
monthly the detailed accounts receivable with the detailed accounts receivable customer listing. 

 
Management’s Response: We have worked with our outside CPA to implement the recommendations and strengthen the 
controls of our utility billing system.  Resolved in 2021. 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426  
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2020-I4 Lack of Standardized Written Policies and Procedures (Material Weakness) 
 
Criteria:  A properly designed and implemented internal control system provides, among other things, reasonable assurance 
that the financial data is accurate and complete and the entity’s assets are safeguarded. An internal control system includes 
processes that permeates an entity’s activities.  Embedded within these processes are controls consisting of policies that reflect 
what should be done to effect internal control and procedures that consist of actions that implement a policy. As such, properly 
designing policies that effect internal control and procedures to implement these policies is integral in design and 
implementation of an internal control system.   Written policies and procedures allow for a tangible and accessible record of 
current approved policies and procedures to review and follow. 
 
Condition: As noted in several current year findings the Village lacks written policies and procedures and as such a lack 
standardized processes throughout the entity’s activities.  This has contributed to and increased the pervasiveness of conditions 
identified as deficiencies in internal control as noted in Findings 2020-I2 and 2020-I3.  Additionally, it has contributed to 
instances of noncompliance noted in Findings 2020-C2 and 2020-C3. 

 
Cause: The Village has few employees, with only one being administrative and has lacked the time, ability, and know how to 
develop effective written policies and procedures. Such recommendations were made in the findings noted in the 2019 audit, 
but the timing of that audit did not allow for adequate follow up within the current fiscal year.   
 
 Effect: Failure to design effective standardized policies and procedures demonstrates a lack of a properly designed internal 
control system; and a lack of written policies and procedures further demonstrates the lack of a properly designed and 
implemented internal control system.  This  
 
for operation of a utility billing system and failure to design and operate effective internal controls over the transactions related 
to the system exposes the Village to several risks, including, but not limited to, misappropriation of assets and inaccurate or 
fraudulent financial reporting.  Failure to design and operate an effective internal control system exposes the Village to several 
risks, including, but not limited to, misappropriation of assets and inaccurate or fraudulent financial reporting, as well as 
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contributes to increased potential of instances of noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant 
agreements.   
 
Recommendation: The Village should put in place written policies and procedures related to credit cards and how they are 
allowed to be controlled, used, documented, approved, and monitored. The Village should also review resources on the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s website to include, but not be limited to best practices provided there. 
 
Management’s Response: During 2021, the Village put into place written policies and procedures recommended by the auditor 
in the 2019 audit.  The Village will continue to develop written policies and procedures that affect internal control throughout 
the financial reporting process.  
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
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Village of Angie 
Schedule 8 

Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Responses 
 for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
Finding Number:  2019-C1 Local Government Budget Act (noncompliance) 
 
Criteria: LRS 39:1305 requires a comprehensive budget be prepared for each fiscal year for the general fund and each special 
revenue fund by the chief executive or administrative officer or equivalent.  The budget document must include a budget 
message and a statement.  The budget must include a budget message signed by the budget preparer which should include a 
summary description of the proposed financial plan, policies, and objective, assumptions, budgetary basis, and a discussion of 
the most important features.  LRS 39:1310 requires amending the budget when the governing authority has received written 
notification pursuant to R.S. 39:1311 (when total revenue and other sources plus projected revenue and other sources for the 
remainder of the year, within a fund, are failing to meet total budgeted revenues and other sources by five percent or 
more; when total actual expenditures and other uses plus projected expenditures and other uses for the remainder of the year, 
within a fund, are exceeding the total budgeted expenditures and other uses by five percent or more; or when actual beginning 
fund balance, within a fund, fails to meet estimated beginning fund balance by five percent or more and fund balance is being 
used to fund current year expenditures), or there has been a change in operations upon which the original budget was adopted. 
In relation to budget amendments, it is noted that it is the opinion of the Legislative Auditor that, when viewing the 
requirements of the Local Government Budget Act as a whole and the role of budget amendments within the budgeting process 
of political subdivisions, a budget amendment is required whenever there is a 5% variance in revenue or expenditures, even in 
those circumstances when the proposed revenue and expenditures in the general fund or special revenue fund are under 
$500,000. Only the written notification requirements are exempted in cases of special revenue and general funds with 
anticipated expenditures of less than $500,000. 
 
Condition:  In December 2018, the Village adopted a budget for the year ending December 2019 for the General Fund, Sales 
Tax Fund, Cemetery Fund, and Utility Fund. The adopted budgets are not in compliance with the required format and the 
Cemetery Fund is not reported as a separate fund. It is included in the General Fund as restricted cash. During 2019, the Village 
also received grant revenue and incurred related grant expenditures for street repairs.  The Village amended their 2019 budget 
in June 2019 to account for the grant revenue and expenditures; however, the final 2019 amended budget for the General Fund 
adopted in December 2019, did not include the grant revenue and grant expenditures. The grant revenue and expenditures were 
included in a Capital Projects Fund, but were accounted for and reported in the General Fund as street repairs. The General 
Fund total actual expenditures and other uses plus projected expenditures and other uses exceeded the total budgeted 
expenditures and other uses by five percent or more.  
 
Cause: The final 2019 adopted budget for the General Fund did not include the grant revenue and grant expenditures. The 
Village amended the budget to include a Capital Projects Fund and account for the grant revenue and grant expenditures. 
However, the grant revenue and grant expenditures were included and reported in the General Fund. Had the General Fund 
included the grant revenue and grant expenditures, the Village would have been in compliance with the budget act as it relates 
to actual expenditures being within 5% variance of the proposed expenditures.  
 
Effect:  Apparent noncompliance with the above referenced statutes. 
 
Recommendation:  The Village should prepare, submit and approve a comprehensive budget in accordance with the referenced 
statutes, including the budget message.  The Village should monitor the budget and also ensure that the budget is amended in 
accordance with the referenced statutes and line items are properly stated. A review of the final fund accounting to the final 
budget to ensure proper reporting should be done. 
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Management’s Response: In the future, the Village will comply with all the requirements of the Local Budget Act. 
 
Current Year Status: Specific condition resolved. However current budget noncompliance noted in finding 2020-C1 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2019-C2 Traffic Citations (noncompliance) 
 
Criteria: Louisiana Revised Statute 32:393C(1)(b) requires that records of all (paid and unpaid) traffic violations, except 
parking violations, be reported to the Department of Safety and Corrections not later than 30 days after the date of the person’s 
conviction and sentencing or the final disposition of the case. 
 
Condition: During the Village’s 2019 audit the following issues were identified:  
 Instances of payment amounts lower than the fine amount per the docket without documentation of the reduction. 
 records of issued citations have not been reported to the Department of Safety and Corrections. 

 
Cause:  The Village did not have written policies and procedures on traffic citation issuance, processing and disposition and 
did not enforce procedures outlined in the above referenced statutes. 
 
Effect:  Noncompliance with the above referenced statutes.   
 
Recommendation: The Village's Chief of Police and Mayor should develop written procedures for traffic citations in 
accordance with state statutes and monitor compliance with these procedures. The Village should review resources on the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s website concerning Traffic Citations and contact the Louisiana Municipal Association for 
additional guidance. 
 
Management’s Response:  The Village’s officials will meet with legal counsel and review the Louisiana Revised Statues and 
best practices for traffic tickets from the Louisiana Legislative Auditor and develop necessary policies and procedures to 
become compliant. 
 
Current Year Status:  Repeated as current year finding 2020-C2. 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2019-C3 On-Behalf Payments (noncompliance) 
 
Criteria:  Statement No. 24 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) addresses the accounting treatment of 
on-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries. On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments 
made by one entity (the paying entity) to a third-party recipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity (the 
employer entity). They include payments made by governmental entities on behalf of governmental entities. This statement 
requires employer governments to recognize revenue and expenditures or expenses for these on-behalf payments.  
 
Condition: During the Village’s 2019 audit, we found that the Police Chief’s supplemental pay was not included in revenue or 
expenditures, nor was appropriate payroll taxes paid.  
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Cause:  Administration and Police Chief were not aware of the financial and payroll tax reporting which is required by the 
Village for Supplemental Pay. 
 
Effect: Inaccurate financial reporting     
 
Recommendation: The Village shall include the supplemental pay in revenue and expenditures in the financial statements and 
annual budget. Also, the Village shall report in income and withhold the appropriate payroll taxes related to the supplemental 
pay. 
 
Management’s Response: We have corrected this as of May 2020 payroll and will continue as required. 
 
Current Year Status: In May 2020, this was corrected retroactively to the beginning of 2020.  Resolved. 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2019-C4 Uncollected Ad Valorem Taxes (noncompliance) 
 
Criteria:  Effective Village operations and an effective internal control system require the design and operation of standardized 
procedures for optimization and collection of major revenue sources and assurance that related financial data is accurate and 
complete and the Village’s assets are safeguarded. 
 
Condition: The Village lacks written policies and procedures and a complete standardized process for ad valorem tax 
collections. The Village lacks adequate procedures and controls to identify past due amounts and properly conduct a tax sale. 
The Village adjusts ad valorem receivable to amount remaining uncollected for the current year. There is no formal policy or 
process for unpaid property taxes. 

 
Cause: There is a lack of complete standardized procedures and a lack of properly designed and operating internal controls 
over ad valorem tax collection, likely resulting from segregation of duties due to the small entity size, the immateriality of 
many of the assessments, and an adequate understanding of the process. 
 
Effect:  Failure to design and follow effective standardized procedures for collection of ad valorem taxes and failure to design 
and operate effective internal controls over the related transactions exposes the Village to several risks, including, but not 
limited to, misappropriation of assets and inaccurate or fraudulent financial reporting. As a result, a material misstatement in 
the Village’s financial statements may not be prevented or detected. 
 
Recommendation: The Village should contact LaMATS through the Louisiana Municipal Association to obtain proposals to 
facilitate the collection of delinquent ad valorem taxes and help navigate the tax sale process. 
 
Management’s Response: We will contact the Louisiana Municipal Association and receive proposals for this and/or improve 
our ad valorem tax system. 
 
Current Year Status: Repeated within current year finding 2020-C3 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
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Finding Number:  2019-C5 Ethics (noncompliance) 
 
Criteria:  LRS 42:1112 prohibits public employees from participating in certain transactions involving the governmental entity.  
 
Condition: Originally, a Village employee was engaged as an independent contractor to provide water maintenance services 
to the Village. The Village is required to have a certified system operator with certain certificates and qualifications to operate 
the Village’s water system. He was later hired as an employee of the Village, and his salary set by the board. His current 
monthly salary amount is $300. There are no written job duties related to this salary, only a verbal understanding. The verbal 
understanding is to maintain the water system and ensure compliance with the required agencies. The job duties include, but 
are not limited to, daily water checks, logging samples, and making adjustments to the Village’s water as necessary for 
compliance. 
 
This employee is also paid for hourly outside services, in addition to his $300 per month salary, as an independent contractor 
for Village maintenance. He completes and turns in timesheets and receives other payments for these additional services. There 
are no written job duties related to this hourly compensation, nor is it reported on his W-2 or payroll taxes withheld.  

 
Cause: The Village pays him a monthly salary to maintain the Village’s water system and keep it in compliance. Maintaining 
a water system requires certain certificates and qualifications of which he has. The Village also hires him as an independent 
contractor to provide additional maintenance for the Village at an hourly rate, in addition to his water maintenance salary.   
These additional payments are not reported on an IRS Form 1099 or as W-2 wages with payroll taxes withheld.  The Village 
may be prohibited by state law from having an employee and independent contractor relationship with the same person.  The 
IRS rules should also be researched for prohibitions of these dual type of relationships. 
 
All of the employees and board members of the Village have completed the one- hour required annual ethics course.  
 
Effect:  Apparent noncompliance with the above-referenced statute. 
 
Recommendation: The Village needs to have a written understanding of job duties for all employees. In addition, the Village 
should put this employee on payroll for all time worked and withhold the appropriate payroll taxes. This will ensure all income 
is reported correctly to the employee as well as payroll taxes. The Village management needs to review ethics statutes and 
understand what constitutes prohibited transactions related to employees. 
 
Management’s Response: With the help of our outside CPA, the employee’s compensation for 2020 has been reported on a 
W-2 and payroll taxes withheld. As of the report date, the Village is in compliance with the above-referenced statute. We will 
also have our outside CPA help implement written policies and procedures for payroll and written job descriptions. 
 
Current Year Status:  Resolved.   
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2019-C6 Payroll (noncompliance) 
 
Criteria:  All disbursements to board or employees should be reported as wages, including special meetings. 
 
Condition: For the year ending December 2019, the Village had three special meetings in which checks were directly written 
to board members, mayor and clerk. The expenditures were reported within the financial statements; however, they were not 
included in wages, nor were payroll taxes withheld and reported on quarterly/annual reports. The amount totaled $1,500 for 
special meetings checks. 

 
Cause: These checks were not run through the payroll function in QuickBooks software and the proper amounts withheld for 
payroll taxes. 
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Effect:  Improper reporting of wages and payroll taxes and related payroll reports for 2019. 
 
Recommendation: The Village should run all payroll through the payroll function of QuickBooks software. 
 
Management’s Response: We will have all board, Mayor and employee checks subject to proper payroll reporting and seek 
help from our outside CPA where appropriate. 
 
Current Year Status:  Resolved. 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2019-I1 Inadequate Segregation of Duties (Significant Deficiency) 
 
Criteria: Proper segregation of incompatible duties requires that there be different individuals responsible for authorizing 
transactions, recording transactions and maintaining custody of related assets. 
 
Condition:  Village of Angie has only seven employees, all of which are part-time. Within those seven part-time employees, 
only one is considered an administration employee, the Village clerk. Consequently, most duties throughout the financial 
reporting process, which are considered incompatible, are being performed by the same individual. The Village engages an 
outside CPA monthly for financial and budgetary reporting. 
 
Cause: Due to the size and nature of the Village, there are few administrative employees and as such, leads to inadequate 
segregation of duties.  
 
Effect:  Inadequate segregation of duties exposes the Village to several risks, including, but not limited to misappropriation of 
assets and inaccurate or fraudulent financial reporting.   
 
Recommendation:  The Village should continue to explore ways to segregate incompatible duties possibly through the use of 
other personnel or staff, Board members, and use of the Village’s outside CPA, as appropriate.  
 
Management’s Response: While we have taken steps to mitigate the risks arising from incompatible duties, we will continue 
to explore additional avenues for segregating duties.  
 
Current Year Status:  Repeated within current year finding 2020-I1 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
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Finding Number:  2019-I2 Credit Cards (Material Weakness) 
 
Criteria:  When processing payments of credit cards, supporting documentation should be attached (original receipt or invoice) 
with the statement. Documentation of each charge should include the business/public purpose.  
 
Condition: Our credit card testing revealed, the Village does not maintain receipts attached to the credit card statement. All 
expenditures are approved before purchased; however, the invoices/receipts/support are not matched to respective credit card 
statement and attached. 

 
Cause:  Unknown 
 
Effect:  The potential for misappropriation of assets. Without proper documentation to support each credit card charge the 
potential for fraud, waste and abuse could occur.  
 
Recommendation: The Village needs to put in place written policies and procedures related to credit cards and how they are 
allowed to be controlled, used, documented, approved, and monitored. The Village should also review resources on the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s website to include, but not be limited to best practices over credit cards. 
 
Management’s Response: The Village will put into place written policies and procedures. These policies and procedures will 
address the credit cards and how they are to be controlled, used, documented, approved and monitored.  
 
Current Year Status:  Repeated within current year findings 2020-I2 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426 
(985) 986-2444 
 
 
Finding Number:  2019-I3 Utility Fund Accounts Receivable, Billing and Customer Deposits (Material Weakness) 
 
Criteria:  Accounts receivable balance in the general ledger should be reconciled monthly with the detailed accounts receivable 
customer listings. The utility customer deposit records in the billing system should reflect the deposit the customer paid. 
Records should include the date paid, for what services, and the amount paid.  
 
Condition: The accounts receivable balance in the general ledger is not reconciled monthly with the detailed accounts 
receivable. There is not a complete listing of customer deposits in the Village’s utility billing system. The Village does not 
have a complete and accurate customer liability report in its utility billing system.  
 
Adjustments to customer billings or accounts are approved by the Mayor, but details of adjustments are often lacking.  

 
Cause: The small entity size, lack of complete standardized procedures, and lack of properly designed and operating internal 
controls over some aspects of utility billings and collections, likely resulting from a lack of adequate understanding of the 
utility billing system and transactions and segregation of duties. The Village also has no written policies and procedures. The 
clerk performs a variety of duties that are incompatible for a proper system of checks and balances including, but not limited 
to, meter readings, inputting meter readings into the utility billing system, prepares the customers’ bills, collects payments and 
customer meter deposits, posts payments in the utility billing system, inputs customer billing adjustments, and prepares bank 
deposit. Also, locating customer deposit information on its current utility customers requires looking up deposit information 
at the time the utility account was opened.  
 
Effect: Failure to design and follow effective standardized procedures for operation of a utility billing system and failure to 
design and operate effective internal controls over the transactions related to the system exposes the Village to several risks, 
including, but not limited to, misappropriation of assets and inaccurate or fraudulent financial reporting. As a result, material 
misstatement in the Village’s financial statements may not be prevented or detected. Also, utility customers who have services 
disconnected and are seeking customer refunds will possibly not have current or accurate information in the utility billing 
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system. Employees looking for this information may under or over pay customer deposits when utility accounts are closed or 
cut off.  
 
Recommendation: The Village should implement written policies and procedures and must continue to seek help in better 
understanding the utility billing system software. The Village should ensure that its employees obtain a full understanding of 
the transactions surrounding utility billing and collections. Finally, these specific recommendations are made: 

 All customer billing and account adjustments should be fully documented and approved and supporting 
documentation retained. Additionally, all customer billing and account adjustments must be entered into the 
utility billing system and an adjustments report should be run from the utility billing system for presentation 
to the Board and approval by the Board. 

 Customer deposit listing should be compiled from supporting documentation as soon as possible and entered 
into the billing software. Once listing is complete and entered into the billing software, the utility billing 
system should then be used to record and continuously monitor the customer deposit listing.  

 The Village should work with and provide its outside CPA the information and reports to help reconcile 
monthly the detailed accounts receivable with the detailed accounts receivable customer listing. 

 
Management’s Response: We will work with our outside CPA to implement the recommendations and strengthen the controls 
of our utility billing system. 
 
Current Year Status:  Repeated within current year findings 2020-I3 
 
Contact Person: 
Roxie Fornea, Mayor 
64474 Market Street 
Angie, LA 70426  
(985) 986-2444 
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Independent Accountant’s Report 

on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 
 
To the Mayor and Board of Aldermen 
Village of Angie and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
 
We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the Village of Angie’s compliance with certain laws and regulations 
contained in the accompanying Louisiana Attestation Questionnaire during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, as 
required by Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide.  The Village’s management is 
responsible for its financial records and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 
 
The Village has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of 
the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the Village’s compliance with the laws and regulations contained 
in the accompanying Louisiana Attestation Questionnaire during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.  Additionally, the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes.  
This report may not be suitable for any other purpose.  The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to 
a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining 
whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes.   
 
The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 
 
Public Bid Law 
 
1. Obtain documentation for all expenditures made during the year for materials and supplies exceeding $30,000, and public 

works exceeding $250,000.  Compare the documentation for these expenditures to Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
39:1551-39:1775 (the state procurement code) or R.S. 38:2211-2296 (the public bid law), whichever is applicable; and 
report whether the expenditures were made in accordance with these laws.   
 

Results:  There were no expenditures exceeding thresholds necessitating bid law compliance in 2020.   
 

Code of Ethics for Public Officials and Public Employees 
 
2. Obtain a list of the immediate family members of each board member as defined by LSA-RS 42:1101-1124 (the code of 

ethics law). 
 

Results:  Management provided us with the required list. 
 
3. Obtain a list of all employees paid during the period under examination. 
 
Results:  Management provided us with the required list. 
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4. Report whether any employee’s names appear on both lists obtained in Procedures 2 and 3. 
 
Results:  None of the employees included on the list of employees provided by management in agreed-upon procedure 3 
appeared on the list provided by management in agreed-upon procedure 2. 
 
5. Obtain a list of all disbursements made during the year; and a list of outside business interests of board members, 

employees, and board members’ and employees’ immediate families.  Report whether any vendors appear on both lists. 
 

Results: Management provided the requested information.  None of the businesses of employees and employees’ immediate 
families appeared as vendors on the list of disbursements. 
 
Budgeting 
 
6. Obtain a copy of the legally adopted budget and all amendments. 
 
Results:  Management provided us with a copy of the original budget and amendments. 
 
7. Trace documentation for the adoption of the budget and approval of any amendments to the minute book, and report 

whether there are any exceptions. 
 
Results:  We traced the adoption of the original budget and budget amendment to the minutes for meetings of the Village’s 
Board of Alderman. 
 
8. Compare the revenues and expenditures of the final budget to actual revenues and expenditures.  Report whether actual 

revenues failed to meet budgeted revenues by 5% or more, and whether actual expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts 
by 5% or more.  (For agencies that must comply with the Licensing Agency Budget Act only, compare the expenditures 
of the final budget to actual expenditures, and report whether actual expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts by 10% or 
more per category or 5% or more in total).   

 

Results:  We compared the revenues and expenditures of the General fund final budget to the General fund actual revenues 
and expenditures.  The General fund revenues were in compliance with budget law, but expenditures were not in compliance 
with the budget law.  We compared the revenues and expenditures of the Sales Tax fund final budget to the Sales Tax fund 
actual revenue and expenditures. The Sales Tax fund revenues and expenditures were in compliance with the budget law.  
 
Accounting and Reporting 
 
9. Obtain the list of all disbursements made during the fiscal year.  Randomly select six disbursements, and obtain 

documentation from management for these disbursements.  Compare the selected disbursements to the supporting 
documentation, and: 

(a) Report whether the six disbursements agree to the amount and the payee in the supporting documentation.   
(b) Report whether the six disbursements were coded to the correct fund and general ledger account.  
(c) Report whether the six disbursements were approved in accordance with management’s policies and 
procedures. 

 
Results:  We examined supporting documentation for each of the selected disbursements and found that payment was for the 
proper amount and made to the correct payee.  All six disbursements were properly coded to the correct fund and general 
ledger account.  The Village’s policies and procedures are that the Mayor and the Board of Alderman must approve all 
disbursements.  The six disbursements were approved in accordance with the policies and procedures. 
 
Meetings 



BRUCE HARRELL & COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
 
Village of Angie 
Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 
 

65 
 

 
10. Obtain evidence from management to support that agendas for meetings recorded in the minute book were posted or 

advertised as required by R.S. 42:11 through 42:28 (the open meetings law); and report whether there are any exceptions. 
 
Results:  The Village of Angie is only required to post a notice of each meeting and the accompanying agenda on the door of 
the Village's office building.  Although management has asserted that such documents were properly posted, no evidence was 
provided to support management’s assertion for all meetings. 
 
Debt 
 
11. Obtain bank deposit slips for the fiscal year, and scan the deposit slips in order to identify and report whether there are 

any deposits that appear to be proceeds of bank loans, bonds, or like indebtedness.  If any such proceeds are identified, 
obtain from management evidence of approval by the State Bond Commission, and report any exceptions. 

 
Results:  We scanned copies of all bank deposit slips for the fiscal year, and noted no deposits which appeared to be proceeds 
of bank loans, bonds, or like indebtedness.  
 
Advance and Bonuses 
 
12. Obtain the list of payroll disbursements and meeting minutes of the governing board, if applicable.  Scan these 

documents to identify and report whether there are any payments or approval of payments to employees that may 
constitute bonuses, advances, or gifts.   

 
Results:  We scanned payroll disbursements and read the meeting minutes of the Village’s Board of Alderman for the fiscal 
year.  We found no payments or approval for payments to employees that would constitute bonuses, advances, or gifts. 
 
 
State Audit Law 
 
13.  Report whether the agency provided for a timely report in accordance with R.S. 24:513.   
 
Results. The Village’s report was filed timely. 
 
14.  Inquire of management and report whether the agency entered into any contracts that utilized state funds as defined in 
R.S. 39:72.1 A. (2); and that were subject to the public bid law (R.S. 38:2211, et seq.), while the agency was not in 
compliance with R.S. 24:513 (the audit law). 
 
Results. The Village represented that the agency was in compliance with R.S. 24:513. 
 
Prior-Year Comments 
 
15.  Obtain and report management’s representation as to whether any prior-year suggestions, exceptions, recommendations, 
and/or comments have been resolved. 
 
Results: Our prior year report, dated January 25, 2021, included budget exceptions.  Representation obtained that the 
exception was resolved. 
 
We were engaged by the Village to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our engagement in 
accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the standards 
applicable to attestation engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the United States Comptroller 
General.  We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would 
be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the Village’s compliance with the foregoing matters.  
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Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion.  Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 
 
We are required to be independent of the Village and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 
 
This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on the Village’s compliance with certain laws and 
regulations contained in the accompanying Louisiana Attestation Questionnaire, as required by Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513 and the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control 
or compliance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document.  
  
 

 
Bruce Harrell & Company, CPAs 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
 
Kentwood, Louisiana 
January 14, 2022



 

67 

 
 

 

l.OUIISl.l.fil .AffE~TATIDN QU!;$TIONNIU1U l 
4r or Attest:itJnn E'"'!J.i!JfomoWtlil or i;,DftmmllfJ1.II A;n~1 

Q!':'11n,.'J21 

e1wu H11m11\~i;,;,o.J:;P,',:s 

1:!.0 Iw.,e 4!i !fCQ A<is; G 

1Writi•Y9it:, LA. ?e-t# 

In ecr-t'!#Jirwl wi!11 ~ur ~nt ID appt, ag,·~,;id..gpo·• r•~u~ to lhe coouol and Cl:lfl'ID1an00 
i1111lltm1 mi11r1Bd lleklw I!!! ci' Pi:gmtq: ~1, 2020 Bild 1'1!11 1hr: !,'Gill than izoo;td, .:anr1 ;u; ~ tir 
Lo.i-11Dr-' Re-.- r.lld Sl.11.i;l.it (R.B ) 2'~ 5 13 xnd t'"2 t.~ Gow~ Alnl'll ~~ ....., .(111.1}..e lhti 
~,n19 ~lalcm 10 ~cu 
Pclilit Bid Lwr 

It 15 trul! lllilL wo "Ul\'lt: ~ (I ailll l tttl 1M1hb: l:t:l l.:rN R.S. TIJIJ llJ-:2211-2296, and, whll't!" 811i!1~. 
Ir: r.J!JUm-JIIS or !Mo Diiisioo nf Atlmn11:1tr~ r'll'ld ~ Shilt, Pun:h111a"g Oln!:e 

Yes [)CJ lllo I I N.i'Ar 
Cod11 ol Elmes ior !>..it:ilc OJ~ "'1111 f!...iJl ir; IEmplO"fm11c 

II II 1,111r ._,. !'IQ i!lmi;,it,~a:i: or affiaali t,~11 aco.:pifod lrflY: l'ij-g 'ilf r.il1ut, whllllM!J In !hi! l'Ol'm ar sr:r.lcc-, 
Dk\ ~ PID"l"llle, lram ~n:,t]ll!'! tll."11 -.00111 OOIIS!ilul.e hioatu:r, c1 ft S .Q·11D1-117-' 

Ye"J. (Xl t,b. l MIA.I I 
li i.:. hue~ no man-.- ... r U111 lmmedkm! famiy oiir t.1n~ m~IT'bor or Lila uo...eminu -llulhcrtr, or 1nl!-G."lel' 
~lll"'C rl II") 9(Tlt't3fllmerta en~lf, tin~ Ql11PQ)lliG C))' IM l))';eflYll~flllll Cl!ilt'f aftu ;\!Jril 1. Hl!IO. 
~al"C\l~.C~ lhilt W-:..a:I COl"tfil1fJ.IXil a Ylokttoo oi R. S.42:1 11, 

Budgc-liHfl 

~ have OXTllll!!II wlh h Y..:ffl b-~lm rRDUI~ cl tho LQCilll (J[l',lllmWErt 'oo,109! NJ. (R.S 
2ft. 31>- -1 SI, R.B ~g :I~, er It.(, bi.!dgot '"'-'qui·cir,ert,. nl RE. 3il 1 ~1-1m, -lis ~k. 

Ye}!'; [XJ 1'41) [ ] :,,l,•I\ [ 

Accat1ntlng .a11,;I R8l)llftli11.1 

.All non-allllmJ!l £»',1°"11Jt!:!11lal ~eoof"l3. :ml! :rl'.-l11blQ .t1o ,;i Di.lb Ee Il'ICl.rrd '11-.d have been ret;J ric-:l "bf Ill. lea:.! 
C'tlile 1~11, -ll!I ~red by R S 44. 1, !lit?, d.i 31 , ~md 114 ~ 

r'e:s [JI!.] t fo I I NIA [ 

V1.'o h.Y,,:) ff O(I our Sl'f"JJ&I IIJ11111Gl!I' :illllemer.t:I In ;tD:Qr(l,HIQll .,,h R 3 2d.614. n:t 33.411o3 llh;u"Q 
~IINI. 

Yi=i. IXJ f-.b I I tff.4 I 
W~ dlll rr,( c'ller Jnro aclj' COOb~ lflill ulltuKI i.l;it11- l\rrlj&..1H1 !letiOOO i'I RS 3!1 72. l A. C21: 17d W I 
... ilf8 lll.lbjild la lh~ pt,,!da lb..d lalfo' (R.ij, 3e.2211, !!'I ,i,q.1, ffl"IJI! ~ l!g,;rt;.'.( Wil:J OOL 11'1 ~plen_ce 'Wllh 
RS 2,t.-513 ft19 Gilii1l l::r.) 

Ye~ JXJ ~o [ ] ~A I ] 

We tmY _ t:0-mpf8d .,,.1:11 R.6 2A.6J3 fJ.. (Jt regilld.it.g r;ll/ir;b:Sure or ro-r1pe11!:oifllmo, rartl!JLIIHITtDI'~, 
I· ri'11ilt, :!nil olhl!f paymllfll!I ID 1h11 llij..ney trur.,r. ~l~I !'l.lb:IM~an hs.d or d"r.e:1 ~INID filfrl::H1 

"(r?f! (XI NCI [ J r-.i1, I 



BRUCE HARRELL & COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
 
 

68 
 

VI,~ t)."1'11) l;Ql'TlrArd With Ff IS. Y..:!Ui.:t regn:-1h~ •~ cd tlr~ .!ln-:.1 pull!- !il1utfoukJn OCl.1100019. 'm1& 
:in:l fee -!!!ll!<l 1.1 ~ f'la amliunb Q,1Ued.w, lJ¥.. a11;iu11li oul~, 11-,e ~ ,.c~iJK::I, 
~ ol!llCJUITI$. r::tlr.bun;art", and 1h11 .ilmr.tml; llHSIU;Jd ll"Cl!'TI <l~I"-

Mce-llnn~ 

We tlan:!- oompl.cd wlh t."'tc proyuKJn~ df lhe Opco-, ''loc!!Jv~ lzt.<.. l)l'O'med n RS "211 tll~ -4? ?8 

Otlltl 

!I (M Wot~ I'# l'..~llrr.,.d Arif M!lrib1nrlllA", ~ lhlln crcdt fer ba da~ or ~ 1ll m.rtc IUJ~C 
m Ille r:.roimry ~ ~ -!ldmhmirat'oo, rt1.r hln-., •1¥11111nlan,;j II\IIC:I tinl' lila~d'if<lit ~om.111'1!:1 

•Nttc,,,Ji lt'oil :.ip!l'lllr.ll al Iha !:ii.ii Bend 011rn1>am, a poondnll b'I AIIJC:.C VII, SKID'! 6 of lht! 1974 
Ulllll~ Olinb-~UII, A.I~..:!¥ 1/1, ~~ 33-0f tt,,i, 1l174 I.O'.;,:.li!nll CCOilih.t!Jol\ iil'ld R .8 39:1410 00 
1-410 6!, 

Alf'li!_l"US :!!Ind !'IOllt 

II•~ 1M 118~'1) ~ EIII n~ wll011R m 11$1~ ~ ;;nipiolYf P.1?!1 Dr p.i~ OOl'f..&11!:1 I~ o00!.ra:n df AitJCI~ VII, 
Sr,,;l km 14 ot lhll 1!! {4 l.o!llSlllnn Ginll llu11lrl,, RS 14 1'llil, in:! P/3 opnbn Jfl-729. 

Y~ IXI N'o[ l Nl,lli I I 

P'rlor Y-t'ar Com~tw. 

'A'G ~ rc=rot.,e,;:t Jlfl•W-;'f:Dr rr.oommc11dnt"YJt, ;;i,·~ (Mlmrrai;s. 

Yt,'!1 (XI No [ J NIA L [ 
G11,-,il 

'l\'8 iwe re::;pons o rorour (00"1;llianoo,,.. ltt8 X!f8QOhl!I li.1.-s ,utd ~UlafQ?:; nn~1 lhc-: lnlemal a:,r.trol!i 
0Ycf com~ w;th llllt:li l.i.r.: ,md ~Wlali~. 

Ye<S p:r l'40 I l triAr l 
W0 haYe 1:11/ci~ our ~•11nr:.e wlf1 t~s.e laws .1.:ind r£<!Jnlilll."lnfi ~ 1:0 ~rig 1."i!!s;e 
~OIHMIJslioll!' 

V■'t: ~ dllllCmed 11:1 JD.I ;isl lm11a11 l'l:ln:~~ian::r d 
oonl.t .a.:lilrt«L m ll\a »rcg""l9 re prc:;cnt.¥inn, 

Ycs- L>:J No l I lll'A I l 
hifi::o-.,Oh;;1 l;ii,,,v;, fr.d 1 ~ula:O"ri>. 8fi • I a& any 

Yes (.114 rib , l ""A [ 1 
WA '11li'ji! 'IIA~a l!l.lll~l!blA ta ~au ~I nioorc:i. 1hlll """'tal lll.lQ ll(',;, rclirv..am t!l Iha ~~ i:Qlt:~UpGf 
pi'Ocl!tJ u ms 

Ya.pq Na l I 11.L'A I 

~Iii. hlh1ll p'l),,,11'.Xod >-a-J 111i1rl any .o,xnmun1CJ111ansa t-om 1e111.11:i1Dr)' IIQOlldc!., rncn111I .iu,:foor.,, other 
~l'lll&nl l)fad.illonel'6- o,-~s,.lmn!B or 00-11?" OOllfCe& ,OOfKl8111111!1 B"'.11 po~hle f'QJIQ,Til!llai,u. IMlh 
lhc ~ laws lln::I rt!9uolions ncludrg ir.1 comll'U""lc.ilxin!. recerttd ~n iho- lltffd t1l lhi, r ol!h<)ti 
um!~r CJ~n;ilinn ;md ~ ~unnce a1 J'O.r report 

'feHXJ No L l N.lJ\ r 1 
r.th ·.wil di,:;lo'!I!' tr., Jl=".l. Illa ~i~illive A.di.or, 11nd 1h11' ~cu.ht.~ si1t1.tlx e:,1,..11 .. -,,'t!!~H any 
"°"olffl rrnnoomi;h;•~ lhcll lllll!,' ~ ru lo lh& lftll'9 "1 .,-our H1pnrt 



BRUCE HARRELL & COMPANY 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
 
 

69 
 

 

ID 11"11!! best DI cu- ldr.l' .irit ~IIOW'l'IJ(il:' 

______ _.,~~•q.q...---"~~lj,.£-::::i:'-------'Socrc"~ Qgt, JQWL (la1A 

------..\.lt:ld;i'H:.t.....~~~~~~_Jriill',lll4',_ -"'DQ,::.1°1..:...1""t'20;-.:.z..:...l _ ____,tla!R 




